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          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: We're here to,

          3  for Intro. Number 317.  It's a City-wide proposed

          4  bill 20055217LLY, Local Law to amend the

          5  Administrative Code of the City of New York in

          6  relation to requiring review of the Landmarks

          7  Preservation Commission before a demolition permit

          8  may be issued.  Is anyone, does anyone from the LPC

          9  want to speak today?  Did you fill out a slip?

         10  Okay.  Diane Jackier from LPC and Mark Silverman

         11  from LPC. I just want to introduce my colleagues who

         12  are here today, Councilman Leroy Comrie, Council

         13  Member Annabel Palma, Council Member Charles Barron.

         14  Thank you very much.

         15                 MS. JACKIER:  Good morning Chair

         16  Felder and Council Members.  My name is Diane

         17  Jackier, Director of Community and Government

         18  Affairs at the Landmarks Preservation Commission.

         19  I'm here today to discuss Intro. 317, introduced by

         20  Council Member Michael McMahon, which has been

         21  reviewed by the Landmarks Preservation Commission

         22  Chairman Robert Tierney, and the Senior Staff of the

         23  Commission.

         24                 Intro. 317 in intended to address the

         25  difficult situation the Commission finds itself in
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          2  when we learn about an architecturally or

          3  historically significant building only at the moment

          4  when someone is seeking a demolition permit from the

          5  Buildings Department.

          6                 In these situations, the Commission

          7  must determine, must determine under a very tight

          8  time frame whether or not a building deserves to be

          9  landmarked.  Decisions must be made quickly before

         10  any Buildings Department permits are issued, because

         11  under the Landmarks Law, designation does not

         12  override a validly issued Buildings Department

         13  permit.  In other words, work approved prior to

         14  landmark designation, including demolition of a

         15  building, may still be done after designation.

         16                 The bill seeks to alter the dynamics

         17  of these situations by creating a new process of

         18  review for all demolition applications for buildings

         19  that are not currently protected by the City's

         20  Landmark Law or under consideration for designation.

         21  Intro. 317 requires the Buildings Department to

         22  determine whether a building or any portion of such

         23  building proposed for demolition is at least 50

         24  years old.

         25                 All buildings meeting this threshold
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          2  would be referred to the Landmarks Commission within

          3  seven days of receipt of the application.  The

          4  Landmarks Commission Chair then has 15 days to

          5  determine whether the building is significant and to

          6  notify the Buildings Department of its

          7  determination.

          8                 If it is determined that the building

          9  is not significant, or if the Chair fails to notify

         10  the Buildings Department within 15 days, the

         11  Buildings Department may issue the demolition

         12  permit.  If it is determined that the building is

         13  significant, the Landmarks Commission must hold a

         14  public hearing on the building within 30 days from

         15  written notification to the Buildings Department.

         16                 Subsequent to the public hearing, the

         17  Landmarks Commission has 14 days to decide whether

         18  the building should be "preferably preserved" and

         19  notifies the Buildings Department of its decision.

         20  The Buildings Department is prohibited from issuing

         21  any permit for alterations or new construction for

         22  buildings that are preferably preserved for 12

         23  months from the date of the Landmarks Commission's

         24  determination.  During this 12 month period, the

         25  Commission can take the final step of designating a
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          2  building.

          3                 Although the intent behind Intro. 317

          4  is laudable, we do have a number of concerns.

          5  Before I say these concerns, however, it is worth

          6  noting that Intro. 317 has a large loophole. The

          7  bill regulates only applications to demolish a

          8  building and leaves what are known as Alt 1 permits

          9  entirely unregulated. While Alt 1 applications

         10  encompass a great variety of work, in its most

         11  expansive form, it can include work that is the

         12  functional equivalent of demolition, including the

         13  razing of a building to its foundations.  One can

         14  easily imagine that developers will quickly seize on

         15  this loophole to frustrate the purpose of Intro.

         16  317, by first pulling and executing an Alt 1 permit

         17  to significantly alter the building before applying

         18  for a demolition permit.

         19                 That being said, let me now discuss

         20  the Commission's concerns with the bill.  First,

         21  Intro. 317 would dramatically increase the

         22  Commission's workload.  Currently, the Commission's

         23  research staff has three full- time and two part-

         24  time employees who are responsible for researching

         25  every building considered for designation.
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          2                 Last year, the Commission held

          3  hearings to consider designating around 400

          4  buildings, which includes both individual landmarks

          5  and buildings in historic districts, and actually

          6  designated around 200 buildings.  In a typical year,

          7  the agency reviews approximately 200 requests for

          8  evaluation, which are requests from the public to

          9  evaluate buildings for designation.

         10                 In 2003 and 2004, the Buildings

         11  Department received about 2,200 and 2,800 demolition

         12  application respectively.  In speaking with staff at

         13  the Buildings Department, it is our understanding

         14  that the Buildings Information System does not track

         15  buildings by date, thereby requiring additional

         16  research by staff to determine a building's age.

         17                 Even if it is determined that a

         18  building was built more than 50 years ago, the

         19  question remains whether subsequent construction or

         20  alteration has substantially or entirely eliminated

         21  the historic fabric.  For example, a turn of the

         22  century row house may have been completely altered

         23  or even substantially demolished under a Buildings

         24  Department Alt 1 permit.  This determination cannot

         25  be made without analyzing the subsequent permits
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          2  and/or conducting a site visit.

          3                 Because of the difficulty in

          4  determining a building's age and/or alterations, we

          5  believe that the Buildings Department may simply

          6  send us all of the applications for buildings that,

          7  on paper, could be at least 50 years old or older.

          8                 As I stated, the Commission reviews

          9  about 200 requests for evaluation a year.  Assuming,

         10  for example, that two thirds of the demolition

         11  applications submitted to the Department of

         12  Buildings are for buildings all or part of which are

         13  50 years old or older, then the Commission would

         14  have to review an additional 2,000 applications a

         15  year, or about 166 applications per month to

         16  determine whether or not a hearing should be held.

         17                 Intro. 317 gives the Commission only

         18  seven days to conduct this initial review.  In many

         19  instances, this review may be fairly easy and

         20  straightforward, assuming the Buildings Department

         21  enforces the current requirement that all demolition

         22  permits include photographs of the building to be

         23  demolished.  It is probable, however, that the

         24  photographs will not always be determinative,

         25  meaning that the LPC staff will have to do a site
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          2  visit and/or additional research in a very short

          3  period of time.

          4                 We can further assume that the

          5  Commission will be interested in only a small

          6  fraction of these 2,000 buildings, say 15 percent or

          7  around 300 buildings.  Intro. 317 requires the

          8  Landmarks Commission to hold a hearing within 30

          9  days of the determination that a building is

         10  significant.

         11                 Last year, the ten volunteer

         12  commissioners plus the paid Chair considered 600

         13  items, mostly applications for work on already

         14  designated buildings, but also all the items being

         15  considered for designation, at approximately 36

         16  public hearings and meetings.  Adding 300 items to

         17  the Commission's public hearing calendar represents

         18  a 50 percent increase and would require a

         19  substantial increase in the number of public

         20  hearings and meetings the Commission holds.

         21                 It is unquestionable that the

         22  Commission does not have the staff to implement this

         23  bill.  Evaluating an additional 2,000 buildings for

         24  consideration as landmarks and holding public

         25  hearings on 300 of these is simply too much by
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          2  orders of magnitude.  It should also be noted that

          3  the increased public hearing requirements would add

          4  significantly to the workload of the ten volunteer

          5  commissioners who already donate three to four days

          6  of their valuable time each month, not counting site

          7  visits, to the City.

          8                 In addition to the workload issue,

          9  Intro. 317 also impermissibly restricts the

         10  Commission's discretion.  The Landmarks Commission

         11  was established as a body of experts that has the

         12  authority to decide what buildings should be New

         13  York City landmarks.  This bill would significantly

         14  restrict that discretion by requiring a public

         15  hearing on any building that is on a national or

         16  state register of historic places, or has been found

         17  eligible for listing on such registers.

         18                 In closing, let me reiterate that

         19  Intro. 317 seeks to address a real and serious

         20  problem.  However, the Commission cannot support the

         21  bill at this time given the many implementation and

         22  practical problems discussed above.  The cumulative

         23  effect of the increased workload and the restriction

         24  on the Commission's discretion is that Intro. 317

         25  would significantly impede the Commission's ability
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          2  to set priorities and work to realize its own

          3  agenda.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Councilman

          5  Comrie.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Good morning.

          7                 MS. JACKIER:  Good morning.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  What do you

          9  mean by if it's determined that the building is not

         10  significant.  What's the status or the definition of

         11  significant?

         12                 MS. JACKIER:  As it is defined in the

         13  law.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  You say the

         15  Landmarks Commission Chair has 15 days to determine

         16  whether the building is significant and to notify

         17  the Buildings Department of its determination if

         18  it's determined that the building is not

         19  significant.  What's significant?  What's the --

         20                 MS. JACKIER:  According to the

         21  standard issue of significant, significance that's

         22  defined by the Landmarks law.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  So, in other

         24  words, if its eligible for a landmarks status?

         25                 MS. JACKIER:  If it's something that
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          2  contributes architecturally, historically or

          3  culturally to the City, State or Nation.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And that

          5  determination is done based on this, just the

          6  individual building, correct?

          7                 MS. JACKIER:  Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  So, if the

          9  rest of the block didn't meet that standard, it

         10  would still just, you would just still just focus on

         11  that individual building?

         12                 MS. JACKIER:  Well, I guess it would

         13  depend on what's being proposed.  If it's a historic

         14  district -- oh, well, yes, no, in this situation,

         15  it's for that individual building.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And, you also

         17  said that in a typical year you look at about 200

         18  requests for evaluations?

         19                 MS. JACKIER:  Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And how many

         21  of those evaluations turn into desire for

         22  designation by the Commission?

         23                 MS. JACKIER:  There is lag time, so I

         24  don't know if I have actually the count of what it

         25  is, but the Commission designates about 12
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          2  individuals a year and three or four historic

          3  districts.

          4            COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.  12

          5  individual buildings and three or four historic

          6  districts.

          7                 MS. JACKIER:  So, it's a few hundred

          8  buildings a year that the Commission designates.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And the

         10  commissioners actually go out themselves and look at

         11  these buildings at lot times?

         12                 MS. JACKIER:  Yes, all the time, for

         13  any building that we designate.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  The

         15  commissioners themselves go out or the staff?

         16                 MS. JACKIER:  In many instances, the

         17  commissioners do take a look at them as well.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And they're

         19  not paid?

         20                 MS. JACKIER:  Only the Chair is paid.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Right.  Okay.

         22    And, so if, clearly, you just think that this bill

         23  is asking the Commission to do too much in too short

         24  a time?

         25                 MS. JACKIER:  It's a, right, I mean
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          2  with the staff and the time limits.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Right.

          4  Alright, thank you.  Thank you Mr. Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Councilman

          6  Barron.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  You know,

          8  this is a very serious problem that we're having and

          9  being sensitive to the workload issue.  But, how do

         10  we preserve those buildings that can really be

         11  destroyed if something is not put in place to really

         12  protect the history, protect, what we're all here

         13  about, you know, that's what this Committee's about,

         14  that's what you're about.

         15                 MS. JACKIER:  Right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  But,

         17  something has to be done to assure that that

         18  protection --

         19                 MS. JACKIER:  And I think that the

         20  Commission is definitely aware of that and, in

         21  theory, certainly supports a bill that would achieve

         22  those goals.  I think that just the difficulties in

         23  the time constraints and the current staffing of the

         24  Commission is why there are issues for the bill.

         25  But, in theory, the Commission would support
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          2  something that would enable us to --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  What would

          4  you suggest?

          5                 MS. JACKIER:  We've been trying to

          6  think of something.  We haven't come up with

          7  anything yet.  But, we would certainly let you know.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Well, we've

          9  got to come up with something --

         10                 MR. SILVERMAN:  I should say, Council

         11  Member --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  -- Because

         13  these are legitimate concerns you have and I sure

         14  can understand that, but, you know, this is a very

         15  serious, serious problem that has to be addressed.

         16                 MR. SILVERMAN:  The Commission has

         17  recently attempted to address this problem in Staten

         18  Island, for example, by applying for --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Did you say

         20  Staten Island?

         21                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Staten Island, yes,

         22  in applying for --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Hey Jimmy,

         24  how you doing?

         25                 MR. SILVERMAN:  By obtaining a grant
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          2   --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Can you just

          4  identify yourself for the record, please?

          5                 MR. SILVERMAN:  I'm sorry, it's Mark

          6  Silverman, General Counsel for the Landmarks

          7  Commission.  We applied for and received a grant and

          8  put one of our staff people on the job of

          9  inventorying and looking at a large swath of the

         10  island, in the hopes that we can then identify our

         11  priorities, our agenda and work to preserve those in

         12  sort of in a non- crisis situation before demolition

         13  permits are issued.  So, that's one, one approach

         14  that we're looking at.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Because I

         16  just want the record to read, Mr. Chair, that in his

         17  absence, I was fighting on behalf of Council Member

         18  McMahon, as you noticed, the line of questioning, I

         19  was supporting and fighting on behalf of Council

         20  Member McMahon and Council Member Oddo before they

         21  came in, to protect Staten Islanders and their

         22  concerns about preserving historical landmarks.  So,

         23  I just want that to go on the record because this is

         24  very, very important.  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very
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          2  much.  Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Mr.

          4  Chairman, I respectfully apologize for being late

          5  for the start of the Hearing.  As you know, Council

          6  Member Oddo and I were at the opening of the new

          7  ferry terminal and I can tell that you're very,

          8  you're as concerned about that issue as we are by

          9  the look on your face.  So, I came in a little late,

         10  I apologize.  But, I was just wondering maybe, Diane

         11  Jackier, if you could just summarize the

         12  Administration's position to the bill, if you will.

         13                 MS. JACKIER:  The Commission.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Well, let me

         15  answer your questions first.  I don't allow any

         16  Members that come late to my Committee to ask any

         17  questions.  So, if you want a dispensation, you'll

         18  have to speak to Gail Benjamin.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Is Ms.

         20  Benjamin available --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  She's behind you

         22   --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- To take

         24  my request? Ms. Benjamin, I humbly request a pardon

         25  for my sins.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Well, Gail?

          3  Alright, under consideration.  Thank you for coming.

          4    Go ahead.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I pardon

          6  myself.  No, I'm not annoyed and I will ask, I just

          7  want to ask a few questions just if I could.  Thank

          8  you.  I think that gives us a green light.  Could

          9  you just summarize it for me, Diane, I apologize.

         10                 MS. JACKIER:  Sure, in general, in

         11  theory, the Commission does support a bill that

         12  would enable the Commission to address the very

         13  serious issue that the Commission has been facing,

         14  where we find out, sort of at the last minute, that

         15  a building is, you know, being proposed to be

         16  demolished.

         17                 But, it's something that the

         18  Commission would be interested in because of its

         19  architectural or historical significance.  But, in

         20  practicality, with the time constraints and the

         21  staffing of the Commission, we do have an issue with

         22  the bill as it currently is.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Well, how

         24  much of an issue?  Is the Administration saying that

         25  there are better time constraints that we can look
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          2  at and is there a breakdown as to what would be

          3  needed to get this job done?  Because --

          4                 MS. JACKIER:  You know, just to give

          5  you an example, the Commission currently looks at

          6  about 200 requests for evaluation a year.  These are

          7  the RFE's -- I know we've received several from you,

          8  where anyone from the public can submit a building

          9  for us to take a look at.  We currently review about

         10  200 a year.

         11                 With, under this bill, with the

         12  assumptions that we've made, based on information

         13  we've gotten from the Buildings Department, they

         14  receive a few thousand demolition permit

         15  applications a year.  We were assuming the

         16  Commission would have to look at about 2,000 of

         17  them, because they would fit under the requirement

         18  of being 50 years old or older.  So, this would

         19  increase by 1,000 percent the number of buildings

         20  the Commission would have to review for --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But, does

         22  this bill require you to do such an exhaustive

         23  review as you would with an RFE?  Or wouldn't it

         24  just, I mean, right now, it's my understanding that

         25  when you demolish a building you have to submit
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          2  photos with the application.  The staff could look

          3  at it and do a quick check on the history of the

          4  building, would not be the same as a thorough

          5  evaluation and consider if this is a building that

          6  would warrant going for the next step of an RFE.

          7                 I mean, it's sort of, I consider it

          8  more of a pre screening and just giving it at least

          9  a look, so that we're not scrambling as the

         10  demolition ball is swinging into the building and

         11  we're scrambling around, as we've done with the

         12  Richardson House, as we've done with the Errington

         13  School House, as we're doing now with the 707 Jewett

         14  Avenue --

         15                 MS. JACKIER:  Right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- In our

         17  district.  It would put more order.  It would put

         18  more certainty and predictability even for someone

         19  who wants to build.  They would know, if I have an

         20  old buildings, somebody's going to look at it before

         21  I tear it down.

         22                 MS. JACKIER:  Right, and so,

         23  definitely I understand the issue of just having,

         24  you know, a first glance, quick look at something.

         25  You know, we are assuming with this, a photograph
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          2  would always be required, I think sometimes they

          3  aren't always submitted.

          4                 So, assuming that photos are always

          5  submitted, it, very often, the Commission would have

          6  to conduct additional research looking at any

          7  subsequent permits that were issued, you know, after

          8  the building was built, to see if there is, in fact,

          9  any historic fabric left.  And, very often it would

         10  require a site visit, which the commission does

         11  before we do move forward with anything, is conduct

         12  a site visit.  So, the issue there is the tight

         13  timeframe in terms of getting access to all the

         14  application permits that have been issued, and also

         15  conducting the site visit, just in the tight time

         16  constraints, is the issue.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Okay.  But,

         18  I know, just one or two more, Mr. Chairman, I

         19  apologize, but I note, I saw reference in the

         20  testimony that the bill has laudable goals and I

         21  appreciate that.  Are you suggesting or is the

         22  Commission suggesting some way that we can achieve

         23  those goals?

         24                 MS. JACKIER:  As --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  In other
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          2  words, I don't want to say, alright, well, we're

          3  trying to do something good, but the devil being in

          4  the details that we lose sight of the goal, and

          5  three years from now we're calling up saying, you

          6  know, they're tearing down another building and

          7  another building. There has to be a way to put some

          8  sort of certainty into the process.

          9                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Councilman, Mark

         10  Silverman, Counsel.  I think we have, as I

         11  mentioned, I think before, as you were coming in,

         12  one approach is to try to do more surveys, so that

         13  we know in advance the buildings that we're

         14  interested in and try to avoid the crisis

         15  situations.  But, obviously, we're not going to be

         16  able to avoid those in every instance.

         17                 So, I think the Commission has been

         18  thinking hard about how, what is a process that

         19  would work here, and we, so far, have been unable to

         20  come up with that combination, that balance between

         21  what buildings are we going to have to look at

         22  versus the workload that we have, and how's that

         23  going to impact on our ability to sort of pursue our

         24  own agenda.

         25                 Because, I think what Diane started
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          2  to say and didn't quite finish, was that you're

          3  absolutely right, the photographs will allow us to

          4  make a quick call on a lot of these buildings.  But,

          5  a lot of them will require more research and the

          6  problem is, ultimately, that research, that has to

          7  be done, and to decide, at some point, we have to

          8  say, we need to do this research to bring it to a

          9  public hearing or not, and it's a real issue about

         10  staffing and the impact on our ability to pursue our

         11  own agenda.

         12                 So, maybe its the definition of what

         13  buildings we're looking at.  But, I think, as our

         14  testimony describes, one issue here is that the

         15  Buildings Department doesn't really track buildings

         16  by age.  It's not what they, they do.  So, the

         17  default is going to be sending things, a lot of

         18  buildings to us for review, but, just sort of by

         19  default, and the practical result of them not really

         20  knowing the age of a building or whether its been so

         21  altered since it was first built in 1898, what's

         22  left of it. So, I think there's a sheer numbers

         23  issue here that we're grappling with and we haven't

         24  come up yet with an answer to your question.  It's,

         25  you know.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But, I'm

          3  concerned because I think we all know that the, and

          4  we have seen that the value of real estate in New

          5  York City continues to grow exponentially.  I mean

          6  there's all those stories, even in the last few

          7  days, in the paper, even, in the outer boroughs

          8  throughout the City.  So, that means that the value

          9  of, in so many places, the value of the dirt, now

         10  far outpaces the value of the building that sits on

         11  it from an economic point of view.

         12                 So, we're going to see more and more

         13  historically important buildings torn down and we're

         14  all going to be, you know, scratching our heads and

         15  bemoaning the fact that we didn't move quickly.

         16                 I mean, if it's a matter of

         17  requesting more resources or quantifying, look you

         18  want us to eyeball this many buildings a year, we

         19  need this many staff members to do it, I think we

         20  need to hear that from the Commission because, I

         21  mean, this is a very, very important issue in every

         22  part of the City of New York.  I know you guys feel

         23  that and agree with me on that, and consider this,

         24  the goals of this bill laudable, but there has to be

         25  a way to get there.  I don't know if we're being
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          2  told that. What do you think?

          3                 MR. SILVERMAN:  I don't think we've

          4  quantified the number of staff we would need, it

          5  would be orders of magnitude in the research

          6  department over what we have now.  But, we can look,

          7  we'll try to, we'll get back to you with that

          8  information.  We'll try, it's hard.  Research is a

          9  difficult thing, especially in the outer boroughs

         10  where research into the Buildings Department

         11  records, you know, it means long trips, it means the

         12  records out there aren't the greatest --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But,

         14  couldn't you, I mean, if I want to demolish a

         15  building in a non- emergency situation, let me make

         16  that clear, we know there are emergency situations

         17  where lives are at risk and we want to be in non

         18  emergency situations.

         19                 If I want to demolish a building for

         20  economic reasons and it should be incumbent upon me

         21  to fill out an application that verifies, you know,

         22  that says, here's a picture of the building, I, as

         23  the owner, have, this is when it was built.  I

         24  attest to that and I mail it to the Commission by

         25  certified mail.  How hard would it be able to look
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          2  at a picture, and say, alright, this building was

          3  built in 1924, it doesn't have any historical

          4  significance, no problem, wait a minute, our

          5  architects, our trained staff says that this could

          6  be significant, Richardson was known to build some

          7  houses in the district, we better put a hold on that

          8  one until we can look at it further?  Is that not

          9  possible, or am I, how can I say this? Am I

         10  considering that first eyeball look to be less

         11  complicated than it really is?

         12                 MR. SILVERMAN:  I mean, I think that,

         13  for these 2,000, because, again, what we're assuming

         14  is we're going to have to look at 2,000 buildings,

         15  as a rough estimate.  I think it's right.  Many of

         16  those we'll be able to do that.  But, I think that

         17  there are hundreds that we may say, this is of

         18  interest or potentially of interest and further

         19  research and that, that further research, that's

         20  really the key.

         21                 I mean, absolutely, a lot of these

         22  are going to be, you know, buildings, we'll look at

         23  the and we'll say, it's been altered, or we'll look

         24  at them or whatever.  But, a lot of them will

         25  require additional research, especially when you,
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          2  when one remembers that it is not purely

          3  architectural, you know, interest that is what's

          4  behind every landmark designation.  There are other

          5  issues, you know, historic, cultural issues that

          6  also are important.

          7                 As you may recall, Miss Errington

          8  School, for example, was an issue that had a lot of

          9  cultural components to it.  So, there's that kind of

         10  additional research that we're going to have to do

         11  and that is, there's no quick way to do that

         12  research, I guess is the short answer to your

         13  question, that we've been, we've thought a lot about

         14  it because it's a real problem, but we haven't come

         15  up with a shortcut to some of that research.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Just one

         17  last question, if I may, Mr. Chairman.  You

         18  mentioned surveys.  Now, is there, just so we, is

         19  there an effort now to survey the whole City of New

         20  York and is Staten Island, for instance, just for

         21  instance, being surveyed?

         22                 MS. JACKIER:  Yes.  Staten Island is

         23  being surveyed and we're actually almost done with

         24  that survey.  And, we have every, you know,

         25  intention of doing all the other boroughs as well.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And will

          3  the, and Staten Island's being done first?

          4                 MS. JACKIER:  Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Staten

          6  Island is, you see, the Landmarks Preservation

          7  Commission is a Commission and a Commissioner who

          8  puts Staten Island first.  That is a wonderful

          9  thing.  That is news.  Will that survey identify all

         10  the historically significant buildings in Staten

         11  Island?

         12                 MS. JACKIER:  That's, we're working

         13  off lists that we have had of historically

         14  significant buildings that we've had, you know,

         15  through lists for the past 40 years that the

         16  Commission has been in existence, and we're going

         17  back through those lists and looking at also new

         18  buildings that we think may be of interest to us and

         19  are compiling what we think would be the, trying to

         20  prioritize those buildings as well and see what we

         21  would be interested in designating going forward.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Well, I

         23  mean, I laud that effort and I thank the attention

         24  that you give to Staten Island. But, again, I think

         25  that this bill, we have to find a way to achieve

                                                            30

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  these laudable goals.  We will work with the

          3  Commission as much as possible and, Mr. Chairman, I

          4  thank you, the staff and my colleagues for your

          5  indulgence.  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I just want to

          7  introduce another Member of the Committee and

          8  Minority Leader, Councilman James Oddo, and he wants

          9  to ask a question.  I just, for those of you that

         10  didn't know, Councilman Mike McMahon was the one

         11  asking the questions up until this point, I didn't

         12  introduce you.  And what? And the prime sponsor of

         13  this bill and he has the name plate in front of his

         14  chair.  Yes, Councilman Oddo.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  When the issue

         16  of the Richardson House came about, the Staten

         17  Island Advance editorialized and sort of voiced the

         18  concern I think that Council Member McMahon and

         19  Lanza and I have voiced and how was the Richardson

         20  House not already landmarked and the concerns voiced

         21  by the newspaper and by my colleagues, were, in

         22  fact, the need to sort of canvas Staten Island and

         23  look to see.  So, Mike's point is well taken that

         24  it's nice that Staten Island is actually first in

         25  this instance, so we thank you for that.
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          2                 The 2,000 number that you just said

          3  to Council Member McMahon, that, can you explain

          4  where you get that number from?

          5                 MS. JACKIER:  This was a guesstimate,

          6  based on information we've gotten from the Buildings

          7  Department.  They, in 2003 and 2004, issued 2,200

          8  and then 2,800 demolition permits. So, we were

          9  assuming that the Landmarks Commission would review

         10  maybe two- thirds of them or so.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Okay.

         12                 MS. JACKIER:  So, about 2,000

         13  applications that we would be, I mean, for buildings

         14  that are 50 years old, any part of which are 50

         15  years old or older.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Does the

         17  Buildings Department have an estimate of how many

         18  buildings are in that universe of being 50 years?  I

         19  mean, you made a reference to it, but do they have

         20  a, you made a reference to the fact of how difficult

         21  it is to find out based on age, but do they have a

         22  rough idea or no?

         23                 MS. JACKIER:  No, they've told us

         24  that they don't. I mean, for some buildings, there

         25  definitely is a date, but for some buildings there
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          2  is not, and that's where the difficulty lies in

          3  determining what the age is.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Just going back

          5  to the 2,000 number again.  So, you said there were

          6  2,200 permits, 2,800 permits and you estimate that

          7  LPC would --

          8                 MS. JACKIER:  About 2,000 of them

          9  would probably be, you know, part of them would be

         10  50 years old or older.  So, the Commission would

         11  review them.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Okay.  Thank

         13  you.  Thank you Mr. Chairman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  You're very

         15  welcome.  Any other questions?  Thank you very much.

         16    Okay.  We're going to be handling the rest of the

         17  Hearing in the same tradition that we've done in the

         18  past.  We're going to have some panels.  Each person

         19  on the panel will be given two minutes to speak, no

         20  more.  Less is okay.

         21                 As I always say at the Hearings, if

         22  you have heard something that was said before,

         23  please don't repeat it.  If you feel that we need

         24  reinforcement, you can give it to us in writing.

         25  But, we want to try to run the Hearing, give
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          2  everybody an opportunity to speak, to get new

          3  information and to get your opinions heard without

          4  repeating things over and over again.  The first

          5  panel we have is David Goldfarb, Simeon Bankoff and

          6  Vincent Montalbano, and you can decide among

          7  yourselves whoever would like to speak first,

          8  identify yourself and I'll ask the Sergeant at Arms

          9  to please start the clock when you're ready.

         10                 MR. BANKOFF:  Good afternoon Council

         11  Members.  I'm Simeon Bankoff, Executive Director of

         12  the Historic Districts Council.  I'd like to thank

         13  the Council for this opportunity to testify in

         14  support of this bill and for regarding this very

         15  important legislation.  The Sergeant at Arms is

         16  circulating some materials that we've put together

         17  about this bill.  David and Vinnie will tell you

         18  more about that.  I'm just really here to kind of

         19  frame our argument.  I'll try not to speak as

         20  quickly as I usually do, but I will try to keep it

         21  brief at the same time.

         22                 As you well know, HDC is the City-

         23  wide advocate for New York's historic neighborhoods.

         24    We represent a constituency of over 125 different

         25  local groups, 50 of which have agreed to sign on in
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          2  support of this legislation.

          3                 What we mostly do is we advise, we

          4  educate and more often than not, we have to comfort

          5  the groups whom we speak to because their buildings

          6  are getting torn down.  There are buildings getting

          7  ripped down every day in all the five boroughs and

          8  it's really, as was remarked earlier, just a

          9  constant tragedy.

         10                 Now, there are potential districts

         11  getting demolished also.  One needs to look at it

         12  from more than the idea that more than just every

         13  single building getting torn down might not rise to

         14  an individual status.  But, there are often

         15  contributing factors that keep neighborhoods

         16  cohesive and really kind of create a historic

         17  streetscape and the LPC is, unfortunately, despite

         18  their best efforts, not really able to stem this

         19  tide.

         20                 They're, I say unfortunately, too,

         21  because they're the only agency in the City that is

         22  really mandated to do this. The Court of Standards

         23  and Appeals does not save buildings.  The City

         24  Planning doesn't save buildings.  The Department of

         25  Buildings doesn't save buildings.  The Landmarks
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          2  Commission is the only commission we have that

          3  actually saves building.  So, we are suggesting this

          4  legislation to help them.

          5                 I'm going to give a little flesh on

          6  these stories and I'll make it very brief.  In your

          7  packets, we've got examples of The Coogan Building,

          8  which was actually a landmark, but that was

          9  overturned, it was then destroyed.  We have the

         10  Hardenbergh and Flagg warehouses on 23rd Street in

         11  Chelsea that were destroyed because zoning was

         12  changed.  There's the Poe House. Those are examples

         13  of buildings that actually could have been reused in

         14  development plans.

         15                 As Councilman Barron and Councilman

         16  Oddo can talk about Staten Island.  Again, in

         17  Queens, you have situations where there are

         18  buildings that exist on large plots that are getting

         19  ripped down.  I just leave it as saying that this

         20  would allow the LPC to have an early voice in the

         21  process.  Thank you.

         22                 MR. GOLDFARB:  My name is David

         23  Goldfarb and I'm the President of the Historic

         24  Districts Council.  I'm also a resident of Staten

         25  Island, in Mr. McMahon's district.  My, the problem
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          2  here is that we do have a number of buildings that

          3  are being lost all the time without being evaluated.

          4                 Two examples are the Mott House in

          5  Rockaway, which is probably one of the oldest

          6  buildings in Rockaway, which was torn down this

          7  year, demolished without any evaluation.  Another

          8  one is 185 Remson Street in Brooklyn, which was the

          9  Brooklyn Gas and Light Company, the precursor for

         10  the Brooklyn Union Gas, which was torn down in 2004,

         11  without ever, without being evaluated.

         12                 The process is not working.  What's

         13  happening instead is what we call designation by

         14  ambush.  A, somebody hears about a demolition permit

         15  and it gets to the Council Member, gets to someone,

         16  gets to the newspaper and it's brought to the

         17  attention of the Landmarks Commission and that's the

         18  ones that maybe get held up.

         19                 Now, there is, there is a process

         20  where the, if a building has already been

         21  calendared, they can hold the demolition for 40

         22  days.  That is not enough time for them to do the

         23  research.  With the H.H. Richardson House, they did

         24  a tremendous rush to do it.  But, in involves them

         25  taking their staff off what the staff should be
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          2  doing.

          3                 This bill puts an orderly process.

          4  It lets them allocate staff to the different fields

          5  that they're doing.  Also, one of the things they

          6  mentioned, if they are doing surveys, this will

          7  greatly reduce the amount of work that has to be

          8  done when one of these buildings comes up, because

          9  they will take these demolition permits and they'll

         10  compare it to the survey they've done, and they'll

         11  say this building is significant.  We were getting

         12  ready to do it.  Now is our opportunity, we can hold

         13  off that demolition for a year until we can really

         14  do the research on it.

         15                 Now, there's no way of doing that.

         16  Even if they were to survey Staten Island, if they

         17  were to survey Brooklyn, if they were to survey the

         18  Bronx, if one of those buildings comes in with a

         19  demolition permit, there's nothing they can do about

         20  it. This bill gives them a process by which they can

         21  orderly do it. It stops them from having to pull

         22  their staff off a, working on a district, working on

         23  another building and put it on the H.H. Richardson

         24  House.  I would think that it would be more

         25  efficient for the use of their staff to have this
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          2  bill in there.

          3                 It would shift the focus of the LPC's

          4  limited resources to the truly endangered, rather

          5  than the squeaky wheel that they hear about.  It

          6  would give equal attention to the outer boroughs

          7  where overdevelopment is decimating our cultural and

          8  architectural heritage and it would give due process

          9  to the owners.  Because, now, if you buy a building,

         10  all of a sudden it comes to be landmarked, you had

         11  no idea, you had no concept.

         12                 Now, every owner who purchases a

         13  building will know that if that building is more

         14  than 50 years old, it will have to go through a

         15  review process.  If they buy that building with the

         16  intent to tear it down and demolish it, they should

         17  go to the person they are purchasing it from and

         18  say, you know, go through the process, get the

         19  demolition permit, because I want to see what's

         20  going to happen.  It really does give due process to

         21  the owner.

         22                 It also gives the owner that chance

         23  for that mini hearing that we're talking about,

         24  where, within that 30 days, they will be able to

         25  come before the Commission and say, you're making a
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          2  big mistake in holding this up for a year, there

          3  really is no significance to this building.  So, it

          4  does give due process to both sides on this issue.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

          6                 MR. MONTALBANO:  Thank you Mr.

          7  Chairman.  I'm Vincent Montalbano.  I'm the

          8  legislative consultant for the Historic Districts

          9  Council.  All I want to do is point out that in your

         10  packet there are a number of things that we think

         11  are very important.

         12                 First of all, there's a list of 50

         13  organizations in each borough and City- wide that

         14  have signed on to support this.  So, we're not alone

         15  in pushing this legislation.  It has a great deal of

         16  support throughout each of the communities in our

         17  City.

         18                 The second is that there is a list of

         19  articles in your packet, again, from various media

         20  and from various places in the City, describing the

         21  problem.  There is also a chart of other

         22  jurisdictions around the country that have similar

         23  types of legislation.  So, as much as we always like

         24  to think that New York is in the forefront of

         25  things, it looks like maybe, in this case, we're
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          2  not, and we should be catching up to other places.

          3  We wanted to make sure you had that.

          4                 Finally, because of what I do for a

          5  living and as long as I've done it, I'm glad to hear

          6  the LPC talk about how this is, this is an important

          7  matter for them and they're supportive of it.  But,

          8  I'm dismayed that we, that they can talk about

          9  something that's important, that a matter of public

         10  policy is something that they can't do and can't

         11  figure out a way to do it.  I think we do have to

         12  figure out a way to do it.  I think if we all agree

         13  that it's something that should be done, we will

         14  figure out a way to do it, and all we ask is that we

         15  all work together to do that as quickly as possible.

         16    Thank you Mr. Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         18  much. Councilman McMahon.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I do want to

         20  thank you all for your advocacy and especially I'm

         21  grateful, because I meant to ask Mark and Diane if

         22  they were aware of what other jurisdictions do, has

         23  anyone done anything similar, so I'm grateful for

         24  this chart and we will study it.  Is there any

         25  jurisdiction that does something very close to what
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          2  we're doing now, what we're attempting to do?

          3                 MR. GOLDFARB:  Yes, I think the --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Is that the

          5  Santa Monica?

          6                 MR. GOLDFARB:  No, I think the, the

          7  legislation is very similar to what they have, they

          8  have model build in Massachusetts, and I believe

          9  that about 75 of the towns and cities have adopted

         10  something similar to this provision based on the

         11  model legislation in Massachusetts.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Does Boston

         13  do it, do you know?

         14                 MR. GOLDFARB:  I don't know if its

         15  Boston is one of the ones --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  From the

         17  audience, just for the record, someone indicated

         18  that -- so that's a model for us to look at, which

         19  we will do.  Thank you all very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Councilman Oddo.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I actually have

         22  more of a point than a statement, than a question,

         23  but I think Mr. Goldfarb's testimony specific to the

         24  point that this actually gives the owner due

         25  process, and is actually beneficial to the owner, I
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          2  think that's a really salient point.

          3                 When we worked with the LPC to save

          4  the Richardson House, how that process started was

          5  the local daily newspaper having a front page story

          6  and elected officials going out and reaching out to

          7  the Chairman.  When I met with the owners of the

          8  building, they bemoaned the fact of how unfair this

          9  was.  They're on the verge of entering into a

         10  contract to sell the building, not expecting this

         11  and then they get blindsided.

         12                 I think it's an excellent point that

         13  now those owners will know ahead of time that there,

         14  in fact, is a process that they will have to go

         15  through, and if they have any intentions to take a

         16  building, buying a property to knock the building

         17  down and if it fits into the criteria of Councilman

         18  McMahon's bill, it's all ahead of them, nothing,

         19  they shouldn't be surprised by it.  So, I think it's

         20  a great point and it's a point that needed to be

         21  repeated, so I did and I'll do it again if I have

         22  to.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  When are you

         24  going to do it again?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Maybe later.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay.  Thank you

          3  very much. Michael Slattery.

          4                 MR. SLATTERY:  Good afternoon.  I'm

          5  Michael Slattery, Real Estate Board of New York and

          6  we oppose the 317. We think this bill will delay new

          7  capital investment and job creation, increase the

          8  cost and risk of new development, encouraging anti-

          9  development centers that have used landmarking as a

         10  tool and undermine the really professionalism and

         11  soundness of the landmarks process in New York City.

         12                 Let me touch on a couple of issues

         13  that were raised here, so as not to repeat myself.

         14  There has been a suggestion here that photographing

         15  is the way to do this and this will be a process.

         16  It's almost as if the process will be, I know it

         17  when I see it, which has always been a concern of

         18  ours in terms what constitutes a landmark.

         19                 The other point that was made also by

         20  the Commission, the Landmarks Commission's

         21  representatives, is that it's not just architectural

         22  issues that determine landmark designation, but also

         23  historical and cultural.  And, the worry is that

         24  these are the kind of issues that are not visible,

         25  hard to see, require more research, and we fear will
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          2  be used by those who are looking to stop

          3  development, not preserve property, as a tool to

          4  kind of push properties into this preferable

          5  preserved status. So, that's a rather serious

          6  concern of ours.

          7                 The other, and I think it was kind of

          8  alluded to here, as probably the mechanism that

          9  would worry us the most, is not that an individual

         10  building has value, but now the buildings around it

         11  are creating some kind of district.  So, we can

         12  envision a time when someone wants to demolish a

         13  building and the building they know itself does not

         14  have merit, but they will make an argument that this

         15  neighborhood should be looked at as a historic

         16  district.  These are all mechanisms I think that

         17  will delay the process.

         18                 The other, and I know we hear about

         19  due process here, and we also heard about a number

         20  of buildings that were worthy of consideration that

         21  were demolished and that is a tragedy.  But, we're

         22  talking about a handful of buildings out of a pool

         23  of 2,000.  So, we're talking about putting a burden

         24  on about 1,900 plus property owners to go through a

         25  process.  And, it's a process that we are concerned
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          2  that will be, if it's driven by anti- development

          3  sentiments, will push these properties into this

          4  preferable status, and it will do so because the

          5  Landmarks Commission will be reluctant to make a

          6  decision against the property if it feels it hasn't

          7  done an adequate review and sometimes, as they've

          8  alluded to, that these reviews may take some time.

          9                 So, our fear is that this, these

         10  properties will be pushed to there as a way so as

         11  not to lose historic fabric, but in many cases, at

         12  the end result of that will be a lot of time lost

         13  and not designation, and that's a real concern here

         14  for us.  Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Mr.

         16  Slattery, does REBONY feel that there are some

         17  buildings that are, that deserve historic

         18  designation --

         19                 MR. SLATTERY:  Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- And

         21  landmark designation, even though they may present

         22  an opportunity for development with economic

         23  enrichment?  Are there buildings that deserve that?

         24                 MR. SLATTERY:  There are buildings

         25  that deserve preservation, yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And do you

          3  also believe that, at this time, there are have been

          4  many situations where historic buildings that

          5  deserve that designation were torn down because they

          6  were not looked at in an adequate time frame?

          7                 MR. SLATTERY:  I'm not sure of that

          8  because I don't, I think the question is a, you know

          9   --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Is it

         11  possible, go ahead.

         12                 MR. SLATTERY:  It's a, it's a

         13  landmark once the City and the Council say it is.  I

         14  think what's being torn down in most cases are what

         15  people may think are worthy of consideration, and

         16  it's not uncommon for people to differ about whether

         17  something designates, whether something is worthy of

         18  designation and I would, you know, at the fear of

         19  being hissed here, Two Columbus Circle is one of

         20  those properties where there was a disagreement as

         21  to what was deserving of designation or not.

         22                 So, I think there are legitimate

         23  issues there that need to be considered.  Now, that

         24  goes back to the question, to the point I made

         25  earlier about I know it when I see it, and that
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          2  worries me a little bit about the assumption that

          3  just looking at pictures of property are enough to

          4  determine whether it's a landmark or not.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Do you think

          6  Grand Central Station enhances and enriches New York

          7  City?

          8                 MR. SLATTERY:  Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Do you think

         10  it was a good thing that that was preserved?

         11                 MR. SLATTERY:  Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Have you

         13  ever seen pictures of the old Penn Station, before

         14  it was demolished?

         15                 MR. SLATTERY:  Seen it and was there,

         16  yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And, have

         18  you ever heard that that was probably --

         19                 MR. SLATTERY:  Tragedy.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: -- A tragedy

         21   --

         22                 MR. SLATTERY:  Correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- That

         24  occurred because it was not looked at as a landmark?

         25    So, you will grant certainly in extreme situations
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          2  like that, the City, as a whole, would have been

          3  better off, and, in fact, even those who are in the

          4  real estate industry and who develop for a profit,

          5  which is a great thing, would benefit as well when

          6  you have things like Grand Central Station or the

          7  old Penn Station, making New York City a more

          8  attractive place and one that preserves its rich

          9  architectural history and the circumstances, when

         10  its warranted? We would all benefit from that, isn't

         11  that correct?

         12                 MR. SLATTERY:  I think that's

         13  correct, but I, there's also cases where properties

         14  are being suggested for designation, which, in our

         15  judgment, lack merit, which are really being pushed

         16  because of the desire to avoid new development and

         17  that this has become a handy tool.

         18                 I think there is a, the Commission

         19  and representatives here alluded to a kind of a

         20  survey mechanism.  I would ask that if they're going

         21  to do a survey of properties and decide which ones

         22  merit further designation, that they also include

         23  publicly the list of those properties which they've

         24  looked at and have decided don't merit it, and with

         25  that, you, in some ways, inoculate it from any kind
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          2  of intrusion in the public process as you move

          3  forward afterwards.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And that's

          5  the type of certainty or, you know, expectations,

          6  reasonable expectations that we're all trying to

          7  reach here.  You guys are the experts.  You tell us

          8  how you would suggest to do this.

          9                 MR. SLATTERY:  Well, we're not the

         10  experts.  We're always seen as being the opponents

         11  to preservation.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I'm sorry.

         13                 MR. SLATTERY:  I say we're always

         14  seen to be as the opponents to preservation.  So, I

         15  think the concern that we've tried to articulate is

         16  capturing with this broad net many property owners

         17  who have structures which were not worthy of

         18  designation or consideration, but that will be

         19  subject to pressure from preservations groups who

         20  think there is some merit in that, and that the

         21  Commission itself will then not want to make a

         22  determination because it hasn't done enough research

         23  and that properties that were scheduled for

         24  demolition will now go into a process that could

         25  take a year or more before a determination is made.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But, in most

          3  cases, you'll have a process that your owner has a

          4  quick answer and one that they can take to the bank,

          5  so to speak, and you would eliminate a lot of

          6  uncertainty.

          7                 If I, Jim Oddo spoke to the case with

          8  Richardson, where the owners were about to sell.  I

          9  had a case in my district, Errington School House,

         10  where a developer bought it and then was confronted

         11  with that and made a pretty compelling argument,

         12  wait a minute, I just bought this property, I

         13  invested a lot of money with these plans, nobody

         14  ever told me this issue was out there.  Wouldn't a

         15  preservation scheme, as envisioned under 317, give

         16  some certainty and predictability that for an

         17  investor and developer would be a welcome thing?

         18                 MR. SLATTERY:  The, for those

         19  properties which are potentially eligible or

         20  suitable for designation, that would be true.

         21  However, the nature of this bill is such that it

         22  captures not just those properties, but a much

         23  larger pool of properties, many of which, we think,

         24  would not be worthy of designation and those, that's

         25  where the problem is, the abuse comes in as well.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Right.  And,

          3  admittedly, there's abuse on both sides here,

          4  because you or your members may not think the

          5  building is deserving, the local citizens or the

          6  preservationists may think it's deserving.  Who's to

          7  decide?  The Landmarks Preservation Commission.

          8  They're the final arbiter. They're the ones who have

          9  the expertise.

         10                 But, we need them to look at these

         11  things in a predictable and orderly fashion, so that

         12  people will know.  Do you see no way that that can

         13  be done, or do you think the way we do it now sort

         14  of, you know, in a hodge podge fashion, you know,

         15  running from fire to fire is a better way to do it?

         16                 MR. SLATTERY:  Well, that's the

         17  circumstance now, but I'd hate to flood all these

         18  properties that are going to be demolished in an

         19  attempt to kind of put out one or two small fires.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Okay, well

         21  we have a respectful disagreement on that point, I

         22  guess.

         23                 MR. SLATTERY:  Let's be clear.  What

         24  we don't disagree with is a desire to try to get to

         25  those properties, you know, in advance, but, and

                                                            52

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  maybe that's a staff issue, maybe that's a survey

          3  process, and the, maybe there's a way of doing that

          4  and I would look to the Landmarks Commission to try

          5  to, work to try to address that issue and we'd be

          6  happy to work with them to do that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  So will we.

          8  Thank you.

          9                 MR. SLATTERY:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Councilman Oddo.

         11    Do you want to repeat what you wanted to repeat

         12  before now?  Thank you. Thank you Mr. Slattery.

         13  Okay, the next panel, Melissa Baldock, Albert

         14  Bennett, I think it's Seri Worden, it's not that

         15  clear, Joseph Kubera.  You can decide among

         16  yourselves, whoever wants to start out.

         17                 MS. BALDOCK:  Good morning Council

         18  Members. Melissa Baldock from the Greenwich Village

         19  Society for Historic Preservation.  GVSHP is a non-

         20  profit organization, dedicated to preserving the

         21  architectural heritage and cultural history of

         22  Greenwich Village and the East Village.  GVSHP

         23  strongly believes that measures enabling the

         24  Landmarks Preservation Commission to review older

         25  buildings before they are demolished and ensuring
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          2  that those meriting landmark status are afforded an

          3  opportunity for designation are wholly appropriate

          4  and necessary.

          5                 Intro. 317 offers the Landmarks

          6  Preservation Commission the chance to review, within

          7  a reasonable administrative mechanism and time

          8  frame, potentially significant buildings before they

          9  are lost forever.  Such measures are immensely

         10  important as too frequently, historically,

         11  architecturally and culturally important buildings

         12  are destroyed before the Landmarks Preservation

         13  Commission has the chance to act.

         14                 GVSHP has been advocating recently

         15  for the protection of the Far West Village Greenwich

         16  Village Waterfront. Many historic structures in this

         17  neighborhood have been lost in recent years as

         18  development pressures have increased.  In many

         19  instances, GVSHP was not aware of the threats to

         20  these historic buildings until after the Department

         21  of Buildings had issued a demolition permit.

         22  Unaware of the threats, we were, in turn, not able

         23  to alert the Landmarks Preservation Commission to

         24  the buildings and ask them to consider the buildings

         25  for designation, which is something we normally do.
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          2                 While GVSHP urges the Council to move

          3  ahead in its consideration of this legislation, we

          4  do have concerns about the additional workload the

          5  bill may impose on both the LPC and the Department

          6  of Buildings.  Thus, we strongly urge that the scope

          7  of the additional work this bill will require for

          8  the two agencies be determined and that additional

          9  resources be provided to those agencies to ensure

         10  that they can continue to carry out their other

         11  mandated work, while complying with this important

         12  piece of legislation.  Thank you.

         13                 MS. WORDEN:  Good morning Chair

         14  Felder and Council Members.  I am Seri Worden,

         15  Executive Director of Friends of the Upper East Side

         16  Historic Districts.  Friends supports Intro. 317 and

         17  the historic building notification bill.  The

         18  proposed legislation is a worthwhile effort to

         19  curtail the loss of New York's historic buildings by

         20  allowing the Landmarks Preservation Commission to

         21  intercede before a demolition permit is issued.

         22                 Although a problem not greatly

         23  affecting the Upper East Side, we are speaking in

         24  solidarity with other New York City preservation

         25  groups, hoping to help unprotected historic
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          2  neighborhoods affected by tear downs and

          3  overdevelopment.

          4                 In addition, the time built into this

          5  legislation would give local community groups and

          6  neighborhood historians an opportunity to work in

          7  partnership with the LPC.  In the absence of a

          8  systematic survey by the agency, this could amplify,

          9  in an orderly way, the work these groups are

         10  currently doing to inventory their historic

         11  resources.

         12                 Although somewhat reactive, the

         13  proposed bill is necessary to compensate for the

         14  lack of a survey department at the Landmarks

         15  Preservation Commission to record and designate

         16  lesser known historically significant buildings.  We

         17  acknowledge that the Landmarks Preservation

         18  Commission will require more resources to complete

         19  this additional workload and we hope their future

         20  needs are met.  Thank you.

         21                 MR. BENNETT:  Albert Bennett.  Good

         22  morning. Representing the Greenwich village

         23  Community Task Force.  In the Far West Village we

         24  are -- I wrote down two words, rampant demolition.

         25  In the past few weeks we lost an 1832 row house
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          2  that, under the provisions of this bill, could very

          3  well have been saved.

          4                 Also, there are any number of

          5  threatened, the GVSHP has a list of seven others in

          6  the Far West Village and beyond the Far West

          7  Village.  I'm also the President of the Morton

          8  Street Block Association.  On Morton Street, we have

          9  a deeply historic fire house that is not designated,

         10  that was built in 1864 as the first home of the

         11  famous Red Rover Fire Department.  So, we look

         12  forward, of course, to this legislation being

         13  passed.

         14                 As a member, a public member of the

         15  Landmarks Committee of Community Board Two, I am

         16  very, very familiar, at first hand, with the

         17  operations of the Landmarks Commission, and a

         18  thought occurred to me that perhaps the public, the

         19  community, could be involved in implementing, in

         20  carrying out the surveys or whatever, and I would

         21  like the Committee to consider that suggestion and

         22  the Landmarks Commission.  I hereby volunteer.

         23                 MR. KUBERA:  Good morning.  I'm

         24  Joseph Kubera and I'm Recording Secretary and Board

         25  Member of the Mud Lane Society for the Renaissance
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          2  of Stapleton and Staten Island.  Part of our mission

          3  as a neighborhood organization is the preservation

          4  of valuable historical buildings and open space and

          5  other environmental concerns.  I just wanted to make

          6  it known that the Board has formally come out by

          7  unanimous vote in favor of this proposed

          8  legislation.

          9                 We believe it's a very important

         10  measure, important step to take in the preservation

         11  process.  We have only to look at tear downs like

         12  the Village Hall and I believe it's New Brighton,

         13  and I know that Councilman McMahon has several other

         14  sites that he mentioned earlier.

         15                 So, we, I just wanted to go on record

         16  saying the Mud Lane Society and our membership is

         17  definitely in favor of the demolition delay bill.

         18  Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I'll be very

         20  brief.  I just want to thank you for your very

         21  reasoned approach and especially the Greenwich

         22  Village Society, Friends for noting, yes, this is

         23  something we have to do, but also we want to look at

         24  the resources and that Landmarks needs extra

         25  resources to do that.
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          2                 Also, to pay accolades to the

          3  Landmarks Preservation Commission, because, Mr.

          4  Chairman, Mud Lane, as you know, is now a historic

          5  district and it went on for years and years and

          6  years under Commissioner Tierney and his staff.

          7  It's now a completed work of art, if you will, and

          8  we just want to point that out that many good things

          9  are done, we just want to do more.  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  The last and

         11  final group, Carolyn Kent -- I think we're going to

         12  need one more chair -- Linda  Eskenas, Paul

         13  Graziano, Julienne Jack and Michael Adams.

         14                 MS. KENT:  Good morning Chair Felder

         15  and bill sponsor McMahon.  Speaking for the

         16  Morningside Heights Historic District Committee.

         17  Let me just center on one, in this brief moment, on

         18  one real point, and that is to juxtapose Diane

         19  Jackier's statements that the staff simply can't

         20  handle this. And, the statement that this is, in a

         21  sense, an attack on the agenda, as the Council, I

         22  mean the Commission's own agenda.

         23                 Well, I really think this draws

         24  attention to the fact that the Commission's own

         25  agenda must be derived from crisis assaulting the
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          2  important history of New York City.  I mean, there

          3  is no, that is the agenda.  In order to evaluate and

          4  make reasoned judgments as emergent factors come

          5  into play, there must be sufficient staff, and this

          6  is why in the over, recent Oversight Hearings, so

          7  many of the preservations groups were pressing you

          8  all so hard to lead in the City Council for a budget

          9  for the Commission that equips it to do the work

         10  that this great world City needs done.  It is not

         11  any light matter.  We can't let slip and slide away

         12  or protect in a hit or miss fashion the history of

         13  this world important City in a sense, perhaps the

         14  apex of its existence here on the globe.

         15                 I mean, this is an absolutely

         16  critical role that is played by this important

         17  agency and it must be funded.  This just can't be

         18  left to the Mayor's caprice.  The people of this

         19  City are increasingly aware and concerned about the

         20  protection of the history of their neighborhoods in

         21  the City and they are turning to their Councilman,

         22  and you all have the power to make an absolute

         23  change in the evaluation, you know, in the sense

         24  that budgets evaluate the mission.

         25                 This mission is absolutely important
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          2  and I like the fact that this bill gives you all a

          3  very, very precise, you know, piece of information

          4  to take to the Council, that there are jobs that

          5  need to be done that they can't afford to do.

          6  Thanks.

          7                 MS. ESKENAS:  Thank you.  I'm Linda

          8  Eskenas and I'll be representing the Preservation

          9  League of Staten Island and also the North Shore

         10  Waterfront Greenbelt and West Brighton Restoration.

         11  Also, just let me say at the onset that we are an

         12  emergency situation and emergency efforts have to be

         13  made.

         14                 As far as economic development,

         15  landmark districts and the whole preservation of our

         16  buildings create economic development, as has been

         17  proven.

         18                 We have watched, we have watched our

         19  neighborhoods and our historic legacy destroyed

         20  every day, beautiful houses and buildings and the

         21  trees that surrounded them.  Buildings from the

         22  1700's, the early 1800's, buildings from the mid-

         23  1800's, where soldiers from the Civil War left and

         24  came back, and lovely Victorian houses, all of them,

         25  all of which told a story of our country.
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          2                 I was just thinking of another

          3  historic site that Henry Ryers (phonetic), who was a

          4  black man in 1802 owned.  He had a house there.  He

          5  buried his family there.  It was an early African

          6  American cemetery.  It is a story of all of our

          7  country.

          8                 What makes New York great are our

          9  neighborhoods and the fact that people live and work

         10  in the City, which is not true of most cities.

         11  These places define the greatest City in the world.

         12  That's why people are attracted to New York, and we

         13  cannot allow anybody to destroy it.  Intro. 17 (sic)

         14  gives us what we need to stop the destruction of our

         15  most important resource, our neighborhoods, our

         16  identity, sense of place and our American heritage.

         17                 We have seen our neighborhoods gauge

         18  out when there was one historic house, there were

         19  often 20 badly built, extremely unattractive, over

         20  priced, undersized structures put in the place of

         21  the beautiful building that was there.

         22                 This overburdens our infrastructure,

         23  invariably breaks the sewer pipes of those nearby.

         24  This has created dangerous traffic hazards.  The

         25  infrastructure cannot handle these additional
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          2  vehicles or emissions.  Our trees are cut down,

          3  further harming the environment and our schools are

          4  overcrowded and overburdened.

          5                 We must have laws that protect the

          6  people of New York and our City and respect our

          7  heritage both for those living now and those who

          8  come after us.  Please protect New York and pass

          9  Intro. 317.  Thank you.

         10                 MS. JACK:  Good morning, I'm Julienne

         11  Jack.  I'm with the Harlem Preservation Foundation

         12  and I am very happy to see that Councilman McMahon

         13  has brought this bill to light because we were

         14  victims of this and still are possibly victims of

         15  this.

         16                 The Harlem Preservation Foundation

         17  was borne out of the destruction of St. Thomas the

         18  Apostle by the Archdiocese and our building was and

         19  still is on the historic sites.  We are designated a

         20  historic site.  We don't have the paperwork on it.

         21  It was something that was found by HUD when the

         22  Archdiocese asked for the paperwork on the building,

         23  they found that we were eligible for the historic

         24  site.  We have been on Channel 13 in the walking

         25  tour of Harlem.
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          2                 We are also a building that was built

          3  by Thomas Henry Pool, one of the eminent architects

          4  of the late 1800 early 1900's, and we don't feel

          5  that we should lose not only this religious building

          6  and the religious campus, because it is a school and

          7  a rectory, but also these designs should not go down

          8  in a heap due to someone's need for financial

          9  remuneration.

         10                 At this point, there are housing

         11  complexes around us, so we are not against

         12  development and all these apartments have been sold

         13  with this historic site as part of their

         14  neighborhood backdrop.  This is also something that

         15  should be considered.  This was not just a religious

         16  institution, it is a historic site, and I hope that

         17  this will bring this, bill will bring it to light,

         18  that there are a lot of buildings in New York that

         19  are in need of saving, not only Lower Manhattan, but

         20  Upper Manhattan does have several pieces of real

         21  estate that should be designated.  Thank you.

         22                 MS. RICH:  Good afternoon.  I'm

         23  reading testimony from Paul Graziano of the Queens

         24  Civic Congress.  I'm sorry? Alice Rich.

         25                 The demo. Delay bill being proposed
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          2  by Council Member McMahon is a much needed provision

          3  that can protect eligible buildings, which could be

          4  designated New York City landmarks from being

          5  demolished before their time.  Numerous buildings,

          6  particularly freestanding houses in Queens and

          7  Staten Island are destroyed or demolished before

          8  they are even on the LPC radar.

          9                 Even when a building is in the

         10  process of being reviewed by the LPC, if it receives

         11  a demo. Permit from the Department of Buildings,

         12  there is little chance of the LPC intervening.

         13  Recent demolitions of unprotected buildings

         14  deserving protection, such as the aforementioned

         15  Mott House in Far Rockaway Queens, could have been

         16  saved had a demo. Delay provision been in place.

         17                 Another important building,

         18  Niederstein's Restaurant on Metropolitan Avenue in

         19  Middle Village, Queens, closed on Saturday after

         20  being continuously open for 150 years. Although

         21  there are no demolition permits issued as of yet,

         22  this important former 19th century roadhouse is

         23  exactly the type of building that could benefit from

         24  this bill.

         25                 A similar restaurant, Flessel's in
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          2  College Point, Queens was demolished five years ago

          3  to the great sadness of that community.  If a demo.

          4  Delay mechanism had been in place, it might still

          5  have been standing today.  In fact, significant

          6  areas of Queens County are populated with 60, 75 and

          7  100 year old buildings of historic and architectural

          8  importance.  They are particularly endangered in our

          9  current overheated real estate market.

         10                 A demo. Delay provision is only as

         11  good as it is used.  Without serious application by

         12  the LPC, landmark quality buildings will continue to

         13  be indiscriminately demolished. Without this

         14  provision, however, it is a moot point, as the LPC

         15  will not have the power, even if it has the will.

         16                 The Queens Civic Congress asks that

         17  Intro. 317 be adopted, so that the fabric of our

         18  historic neighborhoods at least has a fighting

         19  chance to survive.

         20                 MR. ADAMS:  Good afternoon Chairman

         21  Felder, Council Members.  My name is Michael Henry

         22  Adams and I feel somewhat at a loss.  I really do

         23  commend the Council Member McMahon about this

         24  wonderful bill.  But, I really do, I suppose in my

         25  cynical way, worry about the will of the Commission.
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          2                 What if this law existed and Two

          3  Columbus Circle did come before the Landmarks

          4  Preservation Commission?  Would the same outcome

          5  have occurred?  And, similarly, with St. Thomas the

          6  Apostle, given the highly politicized nature of the

          7  Landmarks Preservation Commission, would it too have

          8  met the same fate that it has now, of not having

          9  been protected, even if this law was in place?

         10                 And, talking about other

         11  jurisdictions and how they go about protecting

         12  landmarks, how in Boston and in Washington and

         13  Philadelphia, they have provisions similar to this

         14  proposed bill, it seems to me that as in those other

         15  places, we need an addition, guaranteed mechanisms

         16  whereby the public are able to have access to having

         17  buildings designated or rather, excuse me,

         18  considered as landmarks in public hearings.  So that

         19  in Boston, any civic council member can propose that

         20  a building be made a landmark or a district, and

         21  within 30 days, their commission must have a public

         22  hearing.  Any five registered voters in Boston can

         23  do the same.

         24                 Here, it would seem to me, in New

         25  York, where we've got so many more people who are
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          2  interested in preservation, you could at least make

          3  that figure not five people, but the number of

          4  people it takes to get someone put on the ballot to

          5  run for City Council, for instance.  So, I really

          6  ask the Council in going forward, to look at other

          7  jurisdictions and to look at other means whereby the

          8  Commission can be compelled to do the right thing.

          9                 I think that this bill is an

         10  excellent beginning, but I just don't think that

         11  given the history of the Commission that it goes far

         12  enough.  When you look at the way that landmarking

         13  has enhanced neighborhoods and real estate values

         14  all over the City, all over this country.  When you

         15  look at the notion of how here we're facing the

         16  notion that the Plaza Hotel, that their ballroom and

         17  the Oak Room and the Oak Bar and the Palm Court will

         18  be destroyed and gone forever, it's unbelievable.

         19                 Only when you have the Commission's

         20  attitude change in terms of their will to become

         21  advocates for the building environment of the City,

         22  will we be able to be able to preserve the greatest

         23  City in the world, as everyone has said today.

         24  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.  Any
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          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  questions? Okay.  Thank you very much.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Just thank

          4  you for your advocacy and we'll keep on fighting.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

          6  much, the Hearing is over.

          7                 (Hearing concluded at 12:40 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CHERYL MILLER, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 8th day of February 2005.
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         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CHERYL MILLER
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          8

          9            I, CHERYL MILLER, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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